MINUTES
FINANCE COMMISSION

Wednesday, March 27, 2024 - 5:00 p.m.
City of Huntington Beach

Council Chambers

Huntington Beach, CA 92648

For the audio recording of the March 27, 2024, Finance Commission Meeting, please visit the
City’s website at: https://huntingtonbeach.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx

Chair Billy Hamilton called the meeting to order at 5:05 p.m. and Commission Frank Lo Grasso led
the Pledge of Allegiance.

MEMBERS Billy Hamilton, Chair

PRESENT: Kelly Gates, Vice-Chair
Jamie Craver, Commissioner
Frank Lo Grasso, Commissioner
Janet Michels, Commissioner
Robert Sternberg, Commissioner

MEMBERS ABSENT: David Cicerone, Commissioner

STAFF PRESENT Sunny Han, Chief Financial Officer
Serena Bubeheim, Assistant Chief Financial Officer
Thuy Vi, Management Aide, Finance
Shari Saraye, Buyer

PUBLIC COMMENTS
None

CONSENT ITEMS

Approval of Meeting Minutes

Motion: Moved by Commissioner Lo Grasso and seconded by Commissioner Michels to
approve the Finance Commission Meeting Minutes dated February 28, 2024, as presented

The motion carried by the following votes: 5-0-1-1

Ayes: Craver; Hamilton; Lo Grasso; Michels; Sternberg
Noes: None

Abstain: Gates

Absent: Cicerone

DISCUSSION ITEMS AND POTENTIAL RECOMMENDATIONS

D1. FY 22/23 Year-End Audit Report and FY 23/24 Mid-Year Budget Update — Han

Chief Financial Officer Sunny Han introduced Jon Foster, audit partner with the audit firm Davis
Farr who performed the financial statement audit for the past fiscal year. She stated that Davis

1 of 13


https://huntingtonbeach.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx

March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

Farr audited the City's financial statements, which included an evaluation of the internal control
structure of the City. Han was pleased to report that the City received an unmodified or clean audit
opinion, which is the highest audit opinion available. She noted that we are very proud of the City's
award-winning Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), which has received the
Government Finance Officers Association’s (GFOA) Award of Excellence in Financial Reporting
Award for 37 consecutive years. The financial statement audit includes several reports: the ACFR
was issued the unmodified opinion on December 21, 2023; the AU-C 260 Letter, a required audit
communication; the Appropriations Limit Agreed-Upon Procedures; and AQMD reports.

Foster presented the FY 22/23 audit results. He stated that the internal control areas are reviewed
as part of the audit. Prior to year-end, the audit team comes out in person to perform an interim
audit and walks through internal control cycles with City staff. In each of these cycles, we ensure
there is proper segregation of duties, or that key controls are in place. We reviewed the key
accounting cycles which include billing and cash receipting, purchasing and cash disbursements,
payroll, banking and investing, grant management and information systems. We have on staff a
Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA) who reviews the City’s information systems and
meets directly with the City’s information technology personnel as part of that evaluation. Foster
stated that there were no deficiencies in internal controls to report, nor any instances of
noncompliance with laws and regulations that were direct and material to the City.

Commissioner Craver asked for the size of the audit team that performs personnel interviews and
what staff levels within the organization they speak to about the controls. Foster stated that the
audit team consists of himself, a manager, an in-charge auditor and one or two staff in the field.
We come to the City during the interim audit in the summer prior to year-end or closely thereafter.
We start with CFO Han and the Finance supervisors. When an actual key control is identified, we
are required to walk through it with the personnel performing that key control. He stated that we
perform interviews with supervisors and management, and those key controls are tested at the
place of performance.

Foster identified the areas that they spend a significant amount of time on during the audit. For
pension obligations and OPEB evaluations, we obtain third-party actuarial reports and do certain
procedures over those actuarial reports. For any fiduciary net position associated with those
liabilities, we also obtain audited reports for that portion of the net liability. Every year, we are
required to incorporate an element of unpredictability, which means that we pick a new audit area
or new audit procedure that the City has not had in the past. This year, we chose to audit potential
conflicts of interest. We obtained Form 700s for the City Council members to see if they had any
interest in City businesses and cross checked that against vendors paid. We did not identify any
conflicts of interest with the City. Craver asked if Form 700s of board and commission members
were also reviewed. Foster stated that he could follow up and provide the information to Han.

Hamilton asked for the pension obligations audit procedures. Foster stated that we obtain various
reports that CalPERS issues along with their auditor’s report that audits their net position. One of
the reports is the actuarial valuation report that CalPERS issues as part of the City’s Miscellaneous
and Safety plans which gives us the total pension liability. There is a secondary report issued by
CalPERS specifically for GASB 68 reporting purposes. We use both of those reports to audit the
net pension liability reported by CalPERS. We do certain substantive testing, such as look at

2 0of 13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

differences from year to year in the audited financial statements. We also look at the differences
from the actuarial report and investigate further within the reports.

Hamilton asked if the assumptions in the actuary report are reviewed to assess the sensitivity of
their assumptions. Foster stated that we look at CalPERS’ assumptions, but it is not within our
scope to do any benchmarks on those assumptions and compare it to other actuaries. We do
assess the expertise and qualifications of the actuary. If the qualifications of the actuary fit auditing
standards, we rely on the work of a specialist to use their reports as part of the reporting of the net
pension liability. Hamilton asked if an independent specialist is required, and Foster stated that it is
not. Hamilton asked and Foster confirmed that the assumptions that are in the financial statements
are what CalPERS provides. Foster stated that those assumptions are reported directly from the
actuary.

Foster stated that in testing of capital asset activities, we obtain support from the City for the capital
assets reported and select a sample of projects that are under construction and in progress. When
we test capital assets, we speak directly to project managers or engineers to get the status of
those projects. We know that there are sometimes gaps between what Finance understands and
what a project manager understands, so we substantiate the amounts reported in the ongoing City
projects with individuals outside of Finance.

Foster stated that GASB 96 SBITA (subscription-based information technology arrangements) is a
new accounting standard. Last year, GASB 87 was a new standard pertaining to leases. Leases
excluded subscription-based information technology arrangements. GASB issued that in a
separate standard and it was implemented in the current year. Six information technology
arrangements qualified. Within the financial statements under capital assets, there is a brand new
SBITA asset. Under liabilities, there is a new payable as part of the similar leases, which is the
long-term arrangements for these subscription-based information technology arrangements.

Foster stated that the single audit was performed, and the report is expected to be issued
tomorrow. As part of a single audit, there is always at least one major program we have to audit as
a single audit or a single Federal grant. This year, that grant was testing over the Coronavirus
State and local recovery fund. Hamilton asked and Foster confirmed that the revenues for this
grant were recognized when spent. Foster stated that that all cities received the money up front
and because the grant expenditures were spent during FY 22/23, the revenues were recognized in
that same fiscal year. Hamilton asked if there were any grant funds left. Han stated that the full
allocation of $29.6M was expended in FY 22/23.

Foster reviewed the upcoming accounting standards. There are big changes on the horizon, but
for the next couple of years. For FY 23/24, GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and
Error Corrections, the City does not have to do any changes. That simply defines what constitutes
an accounting change and error correction. For FY 24/25, there are two standards that will need to
be implemented. GASB 101, Compensated Absences, will require less disclosure in the financial
statements and may require a slightly different calculation. There have been varying ways to
calculate this liability across various governments, and GASB has now clarified how they want that
calculated. Prior to the audit, the City will be evaluating their calculation and making sure it
conforms to GASB 101. GASB 102, Certain Risk Disclosures, is not expected to be very material
to the City and applies to smaller local government agencies. It requires government agencies to

30f13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

look at themselves and evaluate if they have a concentration risk, not having a diversified stream of
revenues. If you did not, you would have to footnote that within your financial statements.
Considering the City has a very diversified range of revenues, he does not anticipate that being a
material implementation and no footnote is expected for that upcoming GASB.

Han presented a brief overview of the City Government-wide balance sheet for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2023. She noted that the Government-wide balance sheet provides an overview of
all the City's funds which include not just the General Fund, but also the infrastructure, water,
sewer, and special revenue funds. We have current and other assets totaling $451M,

non-current assets of $2M, net capital assets totaling $913M, and total assets of $1.37B. We have
deferred outflows of resources of $155,000, which are primarily related to pensions and other post-
employment benefits. Our current liabilities are $74M, long-term obligations of $591M, which also
includes the GASB 68 recording of net pension liability of $161M, for total liabilities of $665M. We
also have deferred inflows of $ 21.1M for total net position of $836M.

Hamilton asked and Han confirmed that the bulk of the $451M current and other assets is cash and
investments. Hamilton asked and Han stated that with the long-term obligations, a large portion of
it is the pension obligation bonds (POB), but we do have other bonds as well. We have other
obligations such as long-term leases and other City loan debts. We also have other bonds, such
as the 2014 bond that was issued to build the Senior Center, as well as our 2020A and B bonds
which were refinanced for the 2010A and 2011A lease revenue bonds. Hamilton stated and Han
confirmed that the POB were the majority of the $590M.

Han provided an overview of the City's General Fund Long-Term Financial Plan, which included an
overview of the prior fiscal year, a look forward at the current fiscal year, as well as an outlook into
future years. In the previous fiscal year, we had a General Fund surplus of $3.7M, which was
largely attributed to revenues of one-time spikes in natural gas prices during the winter of 22/23,
and increases in natural gas and electricity rates which resulted in additional Utility User Tax (UUT)
and franchise fee revenues which were above our original budget projections. We also had
transient occupancy tax (TOT) revenues which remained strong due to higher-than-average daily
rates, as well as the full fiscal year of TOT from the City's short-term rental (STR) program. We
continue to have strong demand for the City's Emergency Medical Services (EMS) program.

Craver asked if the STR program is now citywide through application to the City, and if STRs are
limited by certain areas. Han stated that STRs are through application to the City, and hosted
STRS are limited, except for Sunset Beach. In Sunset Beach, pre-existing, unhosted STRs were
allowed to be grandfathered in for the initial stages of program. New applicants would have to
have home hosted STRs. We currently have approximately 218 STRs in the City.

Sternberg asked for clarification on the increased demand for the EMS program, if it is an
expenditure and if we charge for it. Han stated that the program continues to provide additional
services and there is more demand on the Fire Department because we are getting more calls for
service. More calls for service do not necessarily translate into additional revenues, such as with
calls that do not result in transport and lift assists that require additional resources but do not result
in revenues. In some cases, there can be increase in revenue.

4 of 13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

Michels asked and Han confirmed that the CalPERS 6.8% rate of return is reflected in FY 23/24
going forward. Hamilton asked if 6.9% is used as the discount rate in the disclosures. Foster
stated that CalPERS uses two different discount rates. The 6.9% discount rate is for financial
reporting purposes within the financial statements to determine the liability. With the 6.8%,
CalPERS issues an actuarial funding valuation three years behind to determine your contribution.
They use a different discount rate to determine the liability. For 2023, it was based on the 2020
funding actuarial evaluation. The liability is based on the funding valuation of 2021 with the
measurement date of 2022. There is a gap of a year between which funding valuation they use to
measure the liability and what they use as your minimum required payments. Hamilton stated and
Foster confirmed that the return rate for last year was -8% from that measurement date. Foster
noted that as auditors, we look at the assumption and are required to look at the report to make
sure they are in a reasonable window. We are not required to obtain a third-party expert to come
in above us and CalPERS to look at those valuations and to do a separate evaluation as part of the
audit.

Hamilton stated that between 21/22, the inflation rates was 8%, but CalPERS’ inflation went down
from 2.5% to 2.3%. Foster stated some cities choose to subsequent event because these
assumptions are based on past valuations. For example, the assumption within your financial
statements is based on the valuation of 2021, but that assumption is based in 2021. You have the
option to disclose subsequent events that the inflation rate was much different. Going forward, you
have the option to disclose the subsequent event where something was materially different than
the assumption made by the actuary.

Han stated that in looking at the long-term financial plan, the CalPERS 6.1% return for 22/23 and
the 6.8% for the out years assumptions were used in working with our CalPERS actuary to develop
our estimated CalPERS UAL payments. We have a challenge in front of us going into the out
years with substantial deficits. For the current fiscal year, we have one-time revenues in the
General Fund portion of the Emerald Cove payment, which is factored into the 23/24 budget. For
the 24/25 budget, the Waterfront loan payment has not yet been formally approved by the
Department of Finance and we would have to await approval before including that into our
assumptions. Michels asked what that amount would be. Han stated that we had requested
approximately $9.8M, and 20% of that is required by State statute to be set aside for housing. The
remaining 80% would be allocated to the General Fund for loan repayment. Lo Grasso asked for
more information about the payment. Han stated that last year, City Attorney Michael Gates won a
case against the State of California for longstanding City Agency loans which had been in effect
since the late 1970s or early 1980s. We had several loans that had been denied by the
Department of Finance on our ROPS, which is the only formal mechanism for getting former
redevelopment money approved by the State. It had been denied several times, and the only
remaining course of action was to litigate against the State. The case had gone on for a number of
years, and we were ultimately successful with two of our loans, the Emerald Cove property loan
and the Waterfront loan for the sale of the Waterfront property. Han stated that we will ultimately
know the final amount based on DOF approval. The amount that we receive each year is limited
by the amount of property tax that is available through the County, and also limited by a calculation
that is set by State statute. Gates asked how many years this will go out to get full payment. Han
stated that it would depend on how much property tax is available and how many other enforceable
obligations the City has on its ROPS, which can take several years. Han pointed out that we would
continue to accrue 3% simple interest on the remaining principal balance.

50f 13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

Lo Grasso stated that based on these projections, between years 2025 and 2028, we are going to
be $40M short in total. He asked if there are any plans to bridge that shortcoming. Han stated that
the Finance Department and City Manager's Office are working on developing plans to address the
situation. We will be presenting our proposed solutions to the City Council at a future date. Lo
Grasso stated that the projections stop at 2028, and asked if the number will turn around or just
grow in the future. Han stated that she has projected out a couple of years, and the number does
flatten out. One of the reasons why the UAL number escalates is because of the five-year ramp up
period. As previously mentioned by Chair Hamilton, we did go from a year of considerably high
returns at 21.3% to the -7.5% returns. We went from a net pension asset to a net pension liability,
which created new UAL. Because the new UAL is so large, CalPERS phases in that UAL payment
over a period of five years allowing the City some time to adjust to that new level of payment. You
see that number escalating over a five-year period and it then levels off. One thing it does not take
into account is any other new layers that would appear for each year that CalPERS does not meet
its 6.8% target.

Hamilton asked if the change from year to year in recurring revenue is the same percentage as
UAL expenditures, and Han stated that it was not. Hamilton asked and Han confirmed that
expenditures are increasing faster than revenue growth.

Han stated that we have property tax projections going out to 27/28 which were provided by HdL,
our property tax consultant. Sales tax only goes out approximately two years, and after that, we
are conservative in our growth assumptions. Hamilton asked if the City sees approximately 5%
increase in property tax a year, and Han stated that it does and, in some cases, it can be higher.
Hamilton asked if we could assume that sales tax goes with inflation which would be similar to
expenditures, and the main difference is being driven by property tax. Han stated that sales tax
revenues do not necessarily correspond with inflation and does not grow at the same pace. We
are projecting a slight decline in sales tax revenue for the current year due to the high interest rate
environment that we are in. Consumers are moving away from large ticket items such as
automobiles and moving towards more nontaxable items. We are experiencing less revenue in
those categories.

Gates asked what it will look like for the City when we are $40M+ in the negative. She asked if we
do not get this under control with the fixes that the City Manager's Office and Finance suggest, will
it result in massive layoffs and will it be noticeable. Han stated that deficit in a City our size would
be noticeable and result in service level impacts to the community. We would provide a menu of
options to the City Council for their consideration, and it would ultimately be their decision which
options we would implement.

Craver asked for clarification on the liability structure of the Workers’ Compensation Claim Fund
deficit in the audited financial statements. Han stated that workers’ compensation liability is
assessed with a workers’ compensation actuary as well as our third-party administrator, Intercare.
Intercare is the new third party administrator this year and manages our workers’ compensation
claims. We have a running list of all our claims that are reviewed by our actuary. When
developing our estimated liability, our actuary looks at our existing claims, past history of claims
and takes into consideration our future estimated claims and develops estimates on what the
ultimate cost might be. They build a reserve for outstanding claims as well, which impacts our

6 of 13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

premiums. Craver asked if the cost increase is due to trends that we are seeing generally across
the State, mostly related to changes in law. Han stated changes in law is one factor. We have had
some large claims recently that will impact our premiums. Craver stated and Han confirmed that
the a large portion of the increase is City-specific, and we are also on the same trend as others in
the area.

Hamilton asked Han if the City has ever been in a deficit in the time she has worked for the City.
Han stated not in the 14 years since she has been employed with the City. She stated that she
started at the City during the Great Recession, when there were significant structural changes. At
that time, she was a senior accountant and not involved in the budgeting or decision-making
processes as far as strategy. During that time, there had been a separation incentive program
where approximately 120 employees had separated from the City. There was a significant
downsizing of our Finance Department where the accounting team had gone from seven to two.

Lo Grasso stated that he understood that cities cannot go into a deficit, and that they need to
balance at the end of the year. Han stated that some cities will utilize reserves and look at cost-
cutting measures to adopt a balanced budget. Lo Grasso stated that in looking at the $40M deficit
in the four-year period, smoothing it over in four years is approximately $10M a year starting in
2025. Our projected revenue is approximately $300M, which is about 3% of the -$10M. He asked
what the City would look like having to reduce spending by 3% a year to pay for that $10M a year
for those four years. Han stated that it would depend on the City Council’s direction. Within the
budget there are certain items that are fixed and cannot be adjusted such as 22% non-
departmental, which is utilities and debt service. We also have a 15% infrastructure requirement.
Lo Grasso stated that we would have to come up with $10M out of 63% of the budget or cutting 7%
from the remaining funds. Han stated that it would depend on how the cuts are allocated. Michels
stated that last year, adjustments were made in part with managed hiring.

Sternberg asked that with the 15% infrastructure requirement, what is considered infrastructure.
Han stated that it includes streets, roads, buildings; permanent infrastructure that does not have a
separate revenue source such as our water and sewer fund. Water and sewer are proprietary
funds and have their own revenue source. We do not fund water, sewer or refuse projects using
infrastructure fund money.

Hamilton asked and Han confirmed that the City’s net income was $81M; government was $79M
and business type was $2M on the Government-Wide Financial Statement of Activities.

Sternberg asked Foster to expand on internal controls relating to grant management. Foster stated
that we document and test the controls of grant management. One of the controls is allowable
expenses where we select a sample of expenses and make sure they are allowable specifically to
that grant. One of the common deficiencies we find is that costs get slipped in that are not
allowable for that grant. Another control is reporting. Each grant has unique reporting
requirements. We refer to a compliance supplement that is issued by the Federal government on
an annual basis that identifies almost all the individual grants out there. When we look at your
grants, we look at the grant’s assistance listing number, take that number and use an audit guide in
the compliance supplement which contains individual compliance requirements that the City has to
abide by. We then pick each compliance requirement that is direct and material to the City and test
both controls for compliance. The two most common areas are reporting and allowable cost, both

7 of 13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

nonpayroll and payroll. As a part of that, we identify who is responsible for the oversight of that
grant, document the controls and test the controls over that grant.

Sternberg asked if the City has a grant management administrator or a listing of grants. Foster
stated that we have a listing of grants and speak to the individual responsible for overseeing that
specific grant. Han stated that we do not have a grants management administrator. Sternberg
asked if the City had a good control over all the grants and nothing is missed. Han stated that the
list of federal grants is compiled by the accounting department for audit purposes. This particular
single audit is restricted to Federal grants, but they can come through from State agencies. Han
stated that she manages grants.gov and sam.gov for the for the City. Departments have to go
through Finance in order to apply for any federal grant. Sternberg asked that when the City
receives help from outside consultants if the associated expenses go against the grant. Han stated
that we get help with the grant writing process, but those expenses are not allowable, so it is
charged to the General Fund. When applying for grants on behalf of the City, outside consultants
have to use our EIN number and our workspace account, so those requests would still have to
come through Finance. There are good controls in place to make sure that we are covering every
single grant.

Sternberg asked Foster if the City’s information reporting software is considered adequate, and if
the City needs to upgrade their financial reporting systems for the future. Foster stated that would
be outside the scope of his review. We look at changes or controls in security, and if it is adequate
to rely on your financial reporting system. We do not look at whether it is adequate for user needs.
Sternberg asked if there were any limitations in the information that was requested. Foster stated
that we get unrestricted access, and the City gives us the reports that we need.

Michels stated that the chart on page 8 is not substantially different than what we saw last year,
which is large deficits on the out years due in part to the CalPERS UAL. The CalPERS UAL is
projected at 6.8% returns, and if they only achieve 5% next year, those numbers will increase
going forward. In years 25/26 and 26/27, the growth in expenditures exceeds the growth in
revenues. She asked if the expenditures are related to labor contracts with the projected increases
in salaries and benefits. Han stated that the cost of our negotiated contracts is built into these
projections, and labor is the largest percentage of the City's General Fund budget. Michels stated
that we have a pension obligation UAL problem because we are not hitting the numbers that
CalPERS projects and people are living and collecting longer, which will be the biggest risk to the
City's financial health, like it is for every City that has pension obligations. The 6.8% is a false flag
because we did not achieve 6.1% in this year. The market is doing pretty good right now, but we
are not sure if we will end at 6.8%. At some point, the numbers will become real dollars and not
just projections. Han pointed out that if CalPERS achieves another significant investment return,
there is a potential that there would be another risk mitigation event that would be triggered, in
which case they would reassess the investment return and lower the discount rate, which is what
happened with that 21.3%. It is their way of adjusting for that one high year and will consider
lowering the target rate of return for the out years. The first time that the risk mitigation event had
been triggered was with the 21.3% return in 2021. A risk mitigation would be triggered if we
achieved something in the range of 8.8%. Michels stated that getting a 6.1% on a 6.8% projection
has the same negative impact on planning.

8 of 13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

Hamilton asked if there was a timeframe for the 6% average. Foster stated that he recalled that
when they first released the actuarial reports, it started at 30 years but is not sure where it is at
now.

Han stated that the City ended FY 22/23 with a $3.7M General Fund surplus, and that was after
year-end transfers of $12.6M to other funds to partially fund the City's unfunded liabilities such as
workers’ compensation, general liability, the City's retiree supplemental fund and our unmet
infrastructure needs. We took the opportunity to fund some of our unfunded liabilities with the one-
time revenues that we had received from the one-time spikes in natural gas prices, as well as
unbudgeted increases in natural gas, electricity rates, TOT revenue and short-term rental revenue.
Looking ahead into the current fiscal year, after two years of post-pandemic job growth in
California, employment growth is flattening out and is beginning to decline. California consumers
and businesses are spending less, and spending is shifting from taxable goods to nontaxable
items. In looking at our revenues, property tax revenues, which are the City's largest General Fund
revenue source at close to 37% of our revenue budget remains strong, with our revenues projected
to be slightly above our adopted budget due to increases in supplemental property taxes above our
original budget projections.

Sales tax revenues, which are our second largest revenue source at close to 19%, is projected to
decline by approximately $1.3M due to consumer spending shifting away from items such as new
car sales due to the high interest rate environment that we are currently in. Utility tax and franchise
fee revenues are lower than prior years because we do not have the one-time spikes in revenues
and lower gas commodity prices. We are currently projecting to end the current fiscal year with a
$2M General Fund surplus, which is subject to change.

Lo Grasso believes that people are not buying cars because it is costing more to buy food.
Hamilton asked if cars are our main driver of sales tax. Han stated that it is a large portion of our
sales tax revenues. With stimulus funding that households received in the last few years, there
was a large spike in auto sales where we received a very large increase in auto sales tax
revenues. Gates stated that a lot of people travel to and stay in Huntington Beach, and we would
get sales tax revenue from tourists. Han stated that tourism is declining from pandemic levels, and
room rates are not quite as high as they were in prior years. During Covid and as we were
emerging from the pandemic, people were still engaging in more local travel and there was an
influx of TOT revenue. People are now more comfortable with global travel, and we are seeing a
decrease. Our partners at Visit Huntington Beach see the same general trend which is not unique
to our City.

Han provided a CalPERS update. In FY 21/22 we had a -7.5% return, and in FY 22/23, a 6.1%
return rate which requires the City to escalate UAL payments. On June 26, 2023, the City Council
approved updates to the General Fund reserve policy which requires that a minimum of 25% of any
unrestricted one-time General Fund revenues be transferred to the City’s Section 115 Trust to
address CalPERS’ unfavorable returns. This was a proactive move by the City Council to address
the pension issue. As of June 30, 2023, the City’s Section 115 Trust balance is at $20.6M. The
CalPERS investment policy focuses on long-term plan returns. Our POB remains financially
advantageous if the long-term return remains above 2.9%, which is the rate at which we issued our
POB.

9 0of 13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

Lo Grasso stated that our POB payments are approximately $13M a year. He asked what our
CalPERS UAL payment would be if we had not issued the POB. Han stated she is not able to
provide that number as it is hard to assess and not something that is possible to model. She
clarified that the $13M is the principal payment and there is interest on top of that. Our total annual
debt service payment for the POB is approximately $22.5M. Our employee override tax and other
funds also pay for a portion of the POB.

Han provided a snapshot of the change in the City's unfunded liabilities from FY 21/22 to FY 22/23
for workers’ compensation, general liability, retiree supplemental liability, pension liability and
CalPERS UAL. Insurance premiums are anticipated to increase due to rising medical costs and an
expanded list of injuries which are presumed to be work-related under California law. These are an
across the board increase being experienced by all agencies, and some are City-specific instances
which would also increase our premiums. General liability insurance premiums are also expected
to increase as additional markets withdraw from California and from writing public entity liability.
The City is self-insured up to $1M per claim with $25M in excess coverage per claim. We continue
to monitor our unfunded liabilities to identify any cost saving opportunities on an ongoing basis.

Michels asked if the workers’ compensation provider we work with provides any workplace safety
training and if they do workplace assessments to determine how to mitigate injuries by improving
safety elements in the workplace. Han stated that she would obtain that information from Human
Resources.

Hamilton stated that during the planning phase of the audit review, he and Lo Grasso met with
Foster and Han and asked a question about Elan and Breakwater and the overall accounting of the
Navigation Center transaction because it was a very complex transaction. Foster stated that he
submitted an inquiry to GASB regarding the Elan and Breakwater arrangement. After a certain
term, the City has the option to force the sale of the property and retain the proceeds in excess of
costs to be paid on the remaining bond payments on that property. We spoke about whether the
financial statements need to reflect that sort of arrangement. He met with a GASB project
manager and went through various exercises. Foster stated that we determined that Elan and
Breakwater were not investments. An investment is for the purpose of generating income, and that
is not what the City entered into, nor would it be allowable for the purposes of generating income
within the California Government Code. We spoke about the potential to call it a contingent
receivable, meaning that something based on a future event could result in a receivable to the City.
Accounting standards do not allow you to record contingent receivables. In speaking with the
GASB project manager, she was familiar with these types of arrangements and mentioned it was
common with housing authorities. There is a transaction if an event has occurred, and no event
has occurred. Foster and the project manager agreed and concluded that an event has not
happened and that there is nothing to report in the financial statements. Once an event happens,
then an accounting transaction would be recorded. After the bonds are redeemed, the project debt
and any additional fees are addressed, then at that point an actual sale is happening where an
event has triggered this revenue recognition, and the City would know if there was surplus cash
coming to the City. Hamilton asked if there is not enough cash to cover the bonds, would the City
record a loss or does it have to pay out. Foster stated that he did not evaluate the agreement on
that point. The agreement would have to be reviewed to see who is responsible for the shortfall.
Whoever is responsible for the shortfall would then have a liability.

10 of 13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

Lo Grasso asked if Foster looked at the bonds, and Foster stated that he did not. He looked at the
agreement, what would happen upon the sale of the property, and who is entitled to what. Lo
Grasso stated that after 35 years, the bonds will be paid and there will no bond debt. If the City
were going to experience a loss, they would just continue on with the bond until it was paid off.
Foster stated that you are legally required to pay the bondholders as they are the number one lien
holder. Lo Grasso stated that once the bond is paid off, there would no negative if the property is
sold. Foster stated that there is a list of certain items that must happen upon sale, and where you
were on that list would determine the payout calculation. Lo Grasso asked who would be liable if
there is a shortfall when rents collected do not pay for the bond for that year. Foster stated that the
JPA formed would be liable. Foster stated that he cannot speak to this project but can speak to
compliance and JPAs are responsible for payment to the bondholders. Lo Grasso stated that the
City is part of the JPA, and asked if the City would be responsible if we do not get the annual
income to cover the bond. Han stated that a JPA is a legally separate entity, and the bond
documents should discuss who would be responsible if the JPA were not able to make the debt
service payment.

Hamilton stated that the tax issue related to Elan and Breakwater is whether the County of Orange
County will collect property tax. He asked when it will become an accounting issue for the City
where we would have to recognize the liability. Foster stated that the City’s reporting is directly
from the County Assessor. The County would have to start including it on the tax roll and if not
included, you are not overstating your revenues at year-end.

Hamilton asked if we had impairment issues regarding the land that the City purchased on Beach
Boulevard that was found to be contaminated after the fact. Foster stated that he did not have this
item in his notes to address but can meet with Han and provide feedback on contamination issues
at the Navigation Center.

Hamilton and Lo Grasso thanked Foster for meeting with GASB.

D2. Proposed Water and Sewer Rate Adjustments — Sternberg

Hamilton tabled the item for the next meeting so that Commissioner Cicerone can be present to
discuss it. Sternberg noted that there will be a public hearing on the Proposed Adjustments to
Water and Sewer Rates and Changes on April 16, 2024, where some of Cicerone’s questions
would be answered.

D3. Vacancy Report Request to City Council — Hamilton

Hamilton stated that the subcommittee prepared a letter to the City Council regarding the vacancy
report. He summarized that at the last meeting, the Commission did not receive the report that was
voted on and we were going to request from the City Council to get the report that we were denied.
The subcommittee of himself, Cicerone and Sternberg drafted the letter, and he asked the
Commission for feedback. Sternberg stated that upon reading the letter again, he believes that a
better course of action would be to meet with Chief Parra and provide clarity as to why we are asking
for report, rather than going directly to the City Council. Han stated that she could ask Parra to see if
she can schedule a meeting with the subcommittee. Lo Grasso suggested that we address the letter
at the next meeting after the subcommittee’s meeting with the Chief.

11 of 13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

D4. Sales Tax — Michels

Michels stated that this item is a continuation of the pension obligations presentation that she
shared with the Commission last summer. She researched what other cities are doing for ideas.
The article “Westminster Measure E: What You Should Know About the Results So Far” caught her
eye because it is not specific to pension obligations but is inclusive of how a city meets its
obligations. The City of Westminster has pursued a couple of sales tax increases. They were very
close to bankruptcy and in a critical financial situation and determined that they needed to continue
on a 1% sales tax increase. They put another .5% increase on the March 2024 ballot, and now
has the highest sales in tax in Orange County. She was surprised that the community approved it
61% to 39%. She stated that she is not proposing a tax increase for Huntington Beach and is only
providing information that other cities are using this as a tool. Ten other Orange County cities have
also increased sales tax, citing that the number one reason is that the money cannot be taken
away by another entity, whether it be the County or the State. Many of them cited that the
elimination of redevelopment fees was very impactful. Proposition 13 and less home sales were
also impactful to city revenues in general. As we look at the City’s very large liabilities, there are
only so many ways to address them. Even if we depleted our $21M Section 115 Trust, it cannot
cover that $40M+ deficit if the return rates are not higher. We need to be forward thinking and start
working on a solution now. By the time that budget comes, it will be too late, and services will have
to be cut because we cannot meet all our financial obligations. She recommended going to the
City of Westminster’s site which explains to the community what they are trying to do with the
money that will benefit the community. Any sales tax increase must be voted on by the voters.
Michels stated that she will continue to look for interesting elements, sales tax or not, as cities
struggle with ways to increase their revenue in depressed times. Michels stated that she confirmed
with Han that a 1/4¢ sales increase would bring in an estimated $12.5M annually.

Gates asked if residents of cities with higher sales tax are not shopping in other cities to save
money, and if that city is really getting the money from the tax increase. The core sales tax rate is
7.75% and Westminster’s is 9.25%. She questioned if the increase is noticeable on small
purchases. The difference can be seen on large purchases such as a television.

Michels noted that Westminster has an oversight committee that obligates them to use that 1% and
1/4¢ tax for its purposes and there is a contract that the city must follow. Sternberg stated that
Fountain Valley voted for a 1/2¢ tax increase which was used in part to add reflective traffic
signals.

Lo Grasso stated that there is a dollar threshold where people will go to another location for
purchases. The idea of raising a sales tax to pay for the mismanagement of our retirement system
is against everything he believes in. People who are currently paying the taxes for this
mismanagement should not suffer. Taxes that are earmarked for specific purposes end up going
elsewhere as money is fungible. The only way to get control of the deficit is for those feeling the
pain of paying taxes to say no more to negotiating employee contracts with these types of
guaranteed retirements that are bankrupting us. We are going to continue to raise taxes and the
number does not go anywhere.

Sternberg noted that Westminster’s first sales tax increase had an end date and they had to
propose another increase.

12 of 13



March 27, 2024
Finance Commission

Michels agreed with Lo Grasso and stated that once the people feel the pain, they are not getting
their streets paved. Even if the pension was stopped today, the prior commitments were already
made, and that we are paying for future liabilities. Lo Grasso stated that the same argument to
stop the pension was made 15 years ago, and had we done so 15 years ago, we would only have
five years left. Michels asked Lo Grasso if the City Council can fix the pension problem and he
stated that they could not. He believes the only option is to go bankrupt. The City Council’s hands
are tied because our CalPERS buyout is in the billions of dollars. Michels stated that she hopes
that cities have found a solution that is absent bankruptcy because those have other challenges.
She stated that she will continue her research. Lo Grasso stated that raising taxes is not a
solution.

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

Gates stated that we had a great meeting and thanked the Commission for their hard work, all the
research and good conversation. She wished everyone a happy Easter.

Lo Grasso and Sternberg thanked the Commission for the good discussions.

Hamilton thanked Foster for his presentation. He stated that he spoke to the City Treasurer and
was going to have her come to the meeting to report on return rates, but she has her own
committee, the Investment Advisory Board, where she discusses how she invests our $400M in
City cash. She presents it monthly to the City Council and states her rate of return. Lo Grasso and
Sternberg stated that the City is limited in what they can invest in: safety, liquidity and returns.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion: Moved by Commissioner Craver and seconded by Chair Hamilton to adjourn the
meeting at 7:05 p.m.

The motion carried by the following votes: 6-0-1

Ayes: Craver; Gates; Hamilton; Lo Grasso; Michels; Sternberg
Noes: None

Absent: Cicerone

Submitted by:
Sunny Han, Chief Financial Officer
By: Thuy Vi, Finance Management Aide

13 of 13





